RTI Biologics, Inc. Form DEF 14A March 30, 2009 Table of Contents

Filed by the Registrant x

# **UNITED STATES**

# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# **SCHEDULE 14A**

(Rule 14a-101)

# INFORMATION REQUIRED IN PROXY STATEMENT

## **SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION**

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:
 Preliminary Proxy Statement
 Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
 x Definitive Proxy Statement
 Definitive Additional Materials

" Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

RTI BIOLOGICS, INC.

# Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

(	Name	of	Registrant	as	Sr	ecified	In	Its	Charter'	١
١	Tanne	VI.	ILCZISTI ant	4	2	CCIIICU		103	Chai tti	,

(	Name of	of 1	Person(s	(;	Filing	Proxy	Statement	. if	other	than	the	Registrant	t)

Payr	nent c	of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):
x	No f	ee required.
	Fee	computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.
	(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
	(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

Table of Contents 2

(5) Total fee paid:

# Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fe was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
(1) Amount Previously Paid:
(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3) Filing Party:
(4) Date Filed:

## RTI BIOLOGICS, INC.

11621 RESEARCH CIRCLE

ALACHUA, FLORIDA 32615

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of RTI Biologics, Inc., to be held on Tuesday, April 21, 2009 at 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the Company s Corporate Office at 11621 Research Circle, Alachua, Florida 32615.

The accompanying formal Notice of Meeting and Proxy Statement sets forth proposals for your consideration this year. You are being asked to elect two directors to serve for a term of three years.

At the meeting, we will also report on our affairs and provide a discussion period for questions and comments of general interest to our stockholders.

We look forward to personally greeting those of you who are able to be present at the meeting. However, whether or not you are able to be with us at the meeting, it is important that your shares be represented. Accordingly, we request that you sign, date and mail, at your earliest convenience, the enclosed proxy in the envelope provided for your use.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Very truly yours,

Brian K. Hutchison

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

March 27, 2009

## RTI BIOLOGICS, INC.

11621 Research Circle

Alachua, Florida 32615

## NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

## **AND**

## NOTICE OF INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS

Notice Is Hereby Given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of RTI Biologics, Inc. will be held on Tuesday, April 21, 2009 at 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the Company's Corporate Office at 11621 Research Circle, Alachua, Florida 32615, for the following purposes:

- (1) To elect two directors to serve for the ensuing three years; and
- (2) To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 13, 2009 will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

We cordially invite all stockholders to attend the Annual Meeting in person. However, whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting in person, we urge you to complete, date and sign the enclosed form of proxy and return it promptly in the envelope provided. No postage is required if you mail the proxy in the United States. Stockholders who attend the Annual Meeting may revoke their proxy and vote their shares in person.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Thomas F. Rose

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial

Officer and Secretary

Alachua, Florida

March 27, 2009

## IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF

#### PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING:

This Notice and Proxy Statement, our proxy card and our Annual Report

also are available at www.sendd.com/EZProxy/?project\_id=151.

# PROXY STATEMENT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
General Information	1
Proposal No. 1 Election of Directors	3
Corporate Governance	8
Executive Officers of the Company	12
Executive Compensation	13
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	13
Summary Compensation Table	23
Grants of Plan-Based Awards	25
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	26
Option Exercises and Stock Vested	29
Director Compensation	30
Compensation Committee Report	32
Security Ownership of Officers, Directors and Certain Beneficial Owners	33
Audit Matters	36
Audit Committee Report	37
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence	38
Other Matters	39
Annual Report	40
Incorporation by Reference	41
Stockholder Proposals	42

RTI BIOLOGICS, INC.

11621 Research Circle

Alachua, Florida 32615

PROXY STATEMENT

#### GENERAL INFORMATION

## **Policy Solicitation**

This Proxy Statement (first mailed on or about March 27, 2009) is furnished to the holders of our common stock as part of the solicitation by our Board of Directors of proxies for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders or at any adjournment thereof. The Annual Meeting will be held on Tuesday, April 21, 2009 at 9:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the Company's Corporate Office at 11621 Research Circle, Alachua, Florida 32615.

We are holding the Annual Meeting in order to elect two directors for the ensuing three years.

Management is not currently aware of any other matters to come before the Annual Meeting. If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, the persons designated as proxies intend to vote in accordance with their best judgment on these matters.

Proxies for use at the Annual Meeting are being solicited by our Board of Directors. Proxies will be solicited chiefly by mail; however, certain of our officers, directors, employees and agents, none of whom will receive additional compensation for their efforts, may solicit proxies by telephone or other personal contact. We will bear the cost of the solicitation of the proxies, including postage, printing and handling, and will reimburse the reasonable expenses of brokerage firms and others for forwarding material to beneficial owners of shares of our common stock.

## Revocability and Voting of Proxy

We are enclosing a form of proxy for use at the Annual Meeting and a return envelope for the proxy. You may revoke the authority granted by the execution of a proxy at any time before the effective exercise of the powers conferred by that proxy by: (1) filing with our Secretary a written notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date, or (2) voting in person at the Annual Meeting. Shares of our common stock represented by properly executed and unrevoked proxies will be voted in accordance with the instructions specified in such proxies.

## **Record Date and Voting Rights**

On March 13, 2009, there were outstanding 54,251,056 shares of our common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, each of which is entitled to one vote upon each of the matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 13, 2009 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof. The holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote, will constitute a quorum at the Annual Meeting. Proxies received but marked ABSTAIN and broker non-votes will be counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum.

Broker non-votes are shares held by brokers or nominees which are present in person or represented by proxy, but which are not voted on a particular matter because instructions have not been received from the beneficial owner. Under the rules of the Financial Industry Regularity Authority (FINRA, formerly the NASD), member brokers generally may not vote shares held by them in street name for customers unless they are permitted to do so under the rules of any national securities exchange of which they are a member. Many brokerage firms, including NYSE-member brokers, who hold shares of our common stock in street name for their customers and have transmitted our proxy solicitation materials to their customers, but do not receive voting instructions from such customers, are permitted to vote on the election of our directors.

The affirmative vote of the holders of a plurality of the shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required for the election of directors. Votes marked ABSTAIN and broker non-votes will be excluded entirely from the vote and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

2

#### PROPOSAL NO. 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our Board is divided into three classes with each director serving a three-year term and one class being elected each year. Messrs. Chapman, Rainey and Mayer are in the class of directors whose term expires in 2009. Each of these individuals will serve as a director until his term ends, subject to his earlier death, resignation or removal.

At the Meeting, our stockholders will elect two directors to serve a three-year term until the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. It is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying form of proxy to nominate as directors and to vote such proxy for the election of the nominees named below. In the event any nominee should become unable to serve as a director, an eventuality which management has no reason to believe will occur, proxies may be voted for another nominee. Each nominee has been nominated for election to our Board by our Board of Directors and each has consented to serve if elected.

The nominees and our continuing directors, their respective ages, the year in which each first became one of our directors and their principal occupations or employment during the past five years are as follows:

		Year	
		First	
		Became	
Director NOMINEES FOR ELECTION FOR A TERM ENDING 2012	Age	Director	Employment History
Philip R. Chapman	48	1998	Mr. Chapman has served as a member of our Board of Directors since we began operations in February 1998. Mr. Chapman is the President of Venad Administrative Services, Inc., and has been a general partner of Adler & Company since 1995. From 1991 until 1995, Mr. Chapman served as a principal of Adler & Company. From 1988 until 1991, Chapman served as a senior consultant at Booz Allen & Hamilton International. Mr. Chapman holds a bachelor s degree and masters of business administration degree from Columbia University.
Gregory P. Rainey	56	2007	Mr. Rainey joined our Board of Directors in March 2007. Mr. Rainey is the President of CCI Performance Group, a sales and marketing consulting company. Prior to opening CCI Performance Group in 2004, Mr. Rainey served 10 years with Stryker Corporation, a leading worldwide medical products and services company, most recently for four years as Vice President of Sales for Stryker s Orthopedic Division. Previous to Stryker, Mr. Rainey served as Director of Sales for Joint Medical Corporation, as well as sales positions with U.S. Surgical Corporation. Mr. Rainey earned a bachelor s degree in biology from Loyola University.

3

Director CONTINUING DIRECTORS TERM	Age	Year First Became Director	Employment History
ENDING 2010			
Brian K. Hutchison	49	2001	Mr. Hutchison joined RTI in December 2001 as President and Chief Executive Officer and was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors in December 2002. Since February 2008 his title has been Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. In his role at RTI, Mr. Hutchison oversees all aspects of the company and its affiliates. Mr. Hutchison spent the previous 12 years with Stryker Corporation. His last position at Stryker was Vice President, Worldwide Product Development and Distribution. A native of Muskegon, Mich., Mr. Hutchison earned a bachelor s degree in business administration from Grand Valley State University in 1981. He also completed the Program for Management Development at Harvard Business School. He serves on the Board of Directors for the United Way of North Central Florida.
David J. Simpson	62	2002	Mr. Simpson has served as a member of our Board of Directors since October 2002 and was named Lead Director in February 2009. Mr. Simpson formerly served as Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of Stryker Corporation from June 1987 until January 1, 2003, and served as a non-executive officer of Stryker Corporation until December 31, 2007. Mr. Simpson earned a bachelor s degree of business administration in accounting and finance from Western Michigan University and attended the Advanced Management Program at Harvard Business School. Mr. Simpson also serves on the Board of Directors of Kinetic Concepts, Inc., a medical technology company.
Julianne M. Bowler	46	2007	Ms. Bowler joined our Board of Directors in May 2007. Ms. Bowler is an insurance consultant working with various companies and organizations such as Bearing Point, Commercial Union/OneBeacon, and Geico Ms. Bowler served as commissioner of insurance for the Massachusetts Division of Insurance, based in Boston, Mass, from March 2002 to January 2007. Ms. Bowler has more than 10 years of experience in insurance regulation and health policy for companies such as Blue Cross Blue Shield of
		4	Massachusetts and the University of Massachusetts Medical Center, including nine years with the Massachusetts Division of Insurance.  Ms. Bowler has a bachelor s

Year

First

Became

Director

Age Director

#### **Employment History**

degree in philosophy from Assumption College in Worcester, Mass., and a master s degree in philosophy from the University of Dallas in Dallas, Texas. Ms. Bowler was a doctoral candidate in biomedical ethics at Georgetown University in Washington, D.C., and received her master s degree in business administration with a concentration in finance from the University of Massachusetts in Boston, Mass. She serves on the boards of Senior Health Insurance Plan of Pennsylvania (the successor to Conseco Senior Health Insurance) and Atlantic Charter Insurance Company

Roy D. Crowninshield, Ph.D.

60 2008

Dr. Crowninshield joined our Board of Directors upon the closing of our merger with Tutogen Medical, Inc. in February 2008. Dr. Crowninshield was the Chairman of the Board for Tutogen Medical, Inc. from July 2004 to February 2008, and was the Interim Chief Executive Officer from July 2004 to December 2004. Prior to joining Tutogen, Dr. Crowninshield served twenty-one (21) years in various capacities at Zimmer Holdings, Inc., including President of Zimmer s U.S. operations and most recently as the Company s Chief Scientific Officer. Prior to joining Zimmer, Inc. in 1983, he was a faculty member at the University of Iowa where he led many research projects evaluating the function of total joint implants. He holds undergraduate and doctorate degrees from the University of Vermont. He has worked in the orthopedic industry for over twenty (20) years and has extensive experience in the research and development, manufacture, and clinical investigation of orthopedic implants. He has authored more than 100 journal articles, book chapters, and published abstracts in orthopedics and engineering.

# CONTINUING DIRECTOR TERM ENDING 2011

Peter F. Gearen

61 1998

Dr. Gearen has served as a member of our Board of Directors since we began operations in February 1998. Dr. Gearen was Chief of Staff at the Shands Hospital at the University of Florida and served as Assistant Dean of Clinical Affairs at the University of Florida College of Medicine from 1992 until 1999. Dr. Gearen also has been an Associate Professor of Orthopedics at the University of Florida College of Medicine since 1993. Dr. Gearen was appointed Chairman of the

5

		Year First Became	
Director	Age	Director	Employment History Department of Orthopedics in May 2002. Dr. Gearen holds a B.A. from Spring Hill College and an M.D. from the Stritch Loyola Medical School.
Michael J. Odrich	45	1998	Mr. Odrich has served as a member of our Board of Directors since we began operations in February 1998. Mr. Odrich is a Managing Director of Neuberger Investment Management. Until September 2008, Mr. Odrich was the Head of Lehman Brothers Private Equity business. In September 2008, Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc., the corporate parent of Lehman Brothers, Inc., filed a petition under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Mr. Odrich has served as a director of Active Software, Inc. since 1997 and PEMSTAR, Inc. since 1998. Mr. Odrich holds a B.A. from Stanford University and received an M.B.A. from Columbia University.
Adrian J. R. Smith	64	2008	Mr. Smith joined our Board of Directors upon the closing of our merger with Tutogen Medical, Inc. in February 2008. Mr. Smith has been the Chief Executive Officer of The Woolton Group since 1997. He is also the Non-Executive Chairman of Premier Credit Ltd. and AddPower UK Ltd. and a Non-Executive Director of Byotrol plc. His business career includes 13 years in the professional services industry and 24 years with two Fortune 500 companies. He has been a Global Managing Partner, Marketing & Communication at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Chief Executive Officer of Grant Thornton LLP, and a Managing Partner at Arthur Andersen in the early to mid-1990 s. He held senior international management roles with Ecolab Inc. and also with Procter & Gamble. He serves on the board of the Education Foundation of Indian River County in Florida.
Udo Henseler, Ph.D.	69	2008	Dr. Henseler, Ph.D., joined our Board of Directors upon the closing of our merger with Tutogen Medical, Inc. in February 2008. Dr. Henseler is the President and proprietor of Management Services International (MSI), a private business, initiated in 1994. MSI provides business development services for biotechnology and life sciences firms at various stages of their corporate evolution. From 2002 to 2005, Dr. Henseler was the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of eGene, Inc., a public biotechnology company, and further served as a Director in 2006. Dr. Henseler has over forty
		6	

Year

First Became

Director

Director Age

**Employment History** 

years combined global public and private company financial and

operations leadership experience, mainly in the

biopharmaceutical and life sciences sectors. Responsibilities included positions as Director, Board Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, and memberships and Chairman of various Board committees. Dr. Henseler earned his B.A. in Germany, an MBA from Fairleigh Dickinson University in New Jersey, and Master s and Ph.D. degrees from the Claremont Graduate University in Claremont, California. Dr. Henseler is also a Certified Public and Certified Management Accountant and currently serves as

Director and Chair of the Audit Committee of Spire

Corporation, a public company.

## **Vote Required**

Directors must be elected by a plurality of votes cast at the meeting. This means the nominees receiving the greatest number of affirmative votes of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote shall be elected as directors. If you do not vote for a nominee, or you indicate withholding authority on your proxy card, your vote will not count either for or against the nominee. Also, if your broker does not vote on this proposal it will have no effect on the election.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DEEMS THE ELECTION OF THE NOMINEES LISTED ABOVE AS DIRECTORS TO BE IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF RTI BIOLOGICS AND ITS STOCKHOLDERS, AND RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF THE NOMINEES.

7

#### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company s Board of Directors believes the purpose of corporate governance is to maximize stockholder value in a manner consistent with legal requirements and the highest standards of integrity. The board adheres to corporate governance practices, which practices the board and management believe promote this purpose, are sound and represent best practices.

#### **Board of Directors**

Members and Director Independence

Our current Board of Directors consists of eleven members: Brian K. Hutchison, Guy L. Mayer, David J. Simpson, Philip R. Chapman, Peter F. Gearen, Michael J. Odrich, Gregory P. Rainey, Julianne M. Bowler, Udo Henseler, Roy D. Crowninshield, and Adrian J. R. Smith. Our Board has determined that all of our directors except for Messrs Hutchison, Mayer and Rainey are independent as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of The Nasdaq Stock Market.

#### Lead Director

In February 2009, the Board of Directors appointed David J. Simpson as Lead Director. The Lead Director will be appointed each year by the non-management members of the Board of Directors at the organizational meeting of the Board following the Annual Meeting. The Lead Director serves as a liaison between the Chairman of the Board and the non-management members of the Board of Directors, and presides over executive sessions attended only by non-management members of the Board of Directors. The Lead Director consults with the Chairman on the format and adequacy of information the directors receive and the effectiveness of the Board meeting process. The Lead Director may also speak on behalf of the Company from time to time as the Board of Directors may decide.

## **Board Meetings**

During 2008, the Board of Directors held thirteen meetings. Each director attended all of such meetings, except Mr. Odrich, who could not attend two meetings and Mr. Gearen who could not attend one meeting. The Board of Directors also regularly holds executive sessions of the non-management members of the Board of Directors. All members of the Board of Directors attended our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. All of our directors are expected to attend the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

## **Committees of the Board of Directors**

Our Board of Directors has an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Nominating and Governance Committee and a Science Committee which assist our Board of Directors in discharging its responsibilities.

Audit Compensation Nominating and Governance Science David J. Simpson (C)(L) Philip R. Chapman (C) Michael J. Odrich (C) Roy Crowninshield (C) Udo Henseler David J. Simpson Julianne Bowler Peter Gearen Julianne Bowler Adrian J. R. Smith Peter Gearen Roy Crowninshield

- (C) Chairman
- (L) Lead Director

8

#### Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee is charged with, among other things, the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm, as well as discussing and reviewing with the independent registered public accounting firm the scope of the annual audit and results thereof, pre-approving the engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm for all audit-related services and permissible non-audit related services, and reviewing and approving all related-party transactions. Our Audit Committee also reviews interim financial statements included in our quarterly reports and reviews documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Simpson qualifies as an audit committee financial expert as defined by Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Our Board has also determined that each member of our Audit Committee is independent as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of The Nasdaq Stock Market and that each member satisfies the financial literacy requirements of The Nasdaq Stock Market. During 2008, our Audit Committee met nine times. The charter of our Audit Committee is available on our website at www.rtix.com/AuditCharter.aspx.

#### Compensation Committee

Our Compensation Committee plans, reviews and administers our executive compensation programs. Our Board has determined that each member of our Compensation Committee is independent as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of The Nasdaq Stock Market. Our Compensation Committee met three times during 2008. The charter of our Compensation Committee is available on our website at <a href="https://www.rtix.com/CompensationCharter.aspx">www.rtix.com/CompensationCharter.aspx</a>.

## Nominating and Governance Committee

Our Nominating and Governance Committee was established for the purposes of assisting our Board of Directors in its selection of nominees for election to the Board at annual meetings of the stockholders and to fill any vacancies or newly created directorships and assisting the Board of Directors in its corporate governance oversight. Our Board has determined that each member of the Nominating and Governance Committee is independent as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of The Nasdaq Stock Market. During 2008, the Nominating and Governance Committee met once to approve the nominees for election as directors. The charter of the Nominating and Governance Committee is available on our website at <a href="https://www.rtix.com/NominatingCharter.aspx">www.rtix.com/NominatingCharter.aspx</a>.

## Science Committee

Our Science Committee reviews our annual research and product development plans. Our Board has determined that each member of our Science Committee is independent as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of The Nasdaq Stock Market. Our Science Committee met once during 2008. We do not currently have a written Science Committee charter or similar document.

#### **Director Nomination Process**

#### Stockholder Nominations

Our Nominating and Governance Committee reviews, evaluates and proposes prospective candidates for our Board of Directors and considers nominees recommended by stockholders. Stockholders wishing to submit nominations must notify us of their intention to do so on or before the date on which stockholder proposals to be included in the proxy statement for the stockholder meeting must be received by us as set forth under Stockholder Proposals.

## Director Qualifications

Members of our Board of Directors must have personal and professional integrity, demonstrate exceptional ability and judgment and shall be effective, in conjunction with other nominees and directors, collectively, in serving our and our stockholders long-term interests. We believe that having directors with relevant experience

9

in business and other organizations of comparable size or in related industries is beneficial to us. The Nominating and Governance Committee may also consider such other factors as are in our and our stockholders best interests.

Identifying and Evaluating Nominees

The Nominating and Governance Committee identifies nominees by first identifying the desired skill and experience of a new nominee based on the qualifications discussed above. The Nominating and Governance Committee will solicit ideas for possible candidates from members of the Board, executive officers, individuals personally known to members of the Board, third party search firms and prospective candidates recommended by stockholders. It then evaluates potential nominees based upon how a person would complement the other directors in terms of expertise, diversity of opinion and experience and a person savailability to devote sufficient time to Board duties.

#### Communications with the Board

Our Board of Directors maintains a process for stockholders to communicate with the Board or individual directors as follows. Stockholders who wish to communicate with the Board of Directors or an individual director should direct written correspondence to the Lead Director at our principal office at 11621 Research Circle, Alachua, Florida 32615. Any such communication must contain (i) a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record of stock of the Company, (ii) the name and address, as they appear on our books, of the stockholder sending such communication and (iii) the number of our shares that are beneficially owned by such stockholder. The Lead Director will forward such communications to the Board of Directors or the specified individual director to whom the communication is directed unless such communication is unduly hostile, threatening, illegal or similarly inappropriate, in which case the Lead Director has the authority to discard the communication or take appropriate legal action regarding such communication.

#### **Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Professionals**

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Professionals, applicable to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Vice President of Finance and Controller. The Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Professionals is available on our website at <a href="https://www.rtix.com/CodeOfEthics.aspx">www.rtix.com/CodeOfEthics.aspx</a>.

## **Code of Conduct**

Our Board of Directors has also adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all of our directors, officers and employees. The Code of Conduct is available on our website at www.rtix.com/CodeOfConduct.aspx.

## **Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation**

No member of our Compensation Committee was an officer or employee of ours during 2008 or in any prior period. None of our executive officers serves as a member of the Board of Directors or the compensation committee of any other entity that has one or more executive officers serving as a member of our Board of Directors or our Compensation Committee.

#### Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

To our knowledge, our directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than ten percent of our common stock were in compliance in 2008 with the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except as follows:

Udo Henseler filed two late ownership reports on Form 4, the first for two transactions that occurred on November 18 and 19, 2008 and second for two transactions that occurred on November 24 and 25, 2008.

10

Julianne Bowler filed one late ownership report on Form 4 that for a transaction that occurred on November 3, 2008.

Roger Rose filed one late ownership report on Form 4 for two transactions that occurred on November 28, 2008 and December 1, 2008.

11

#### EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Name Age Offices/Position

Brian K. Hutchison 49 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas F. Rose 58 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary Roger W. Rose 49 President, RTI Donor Services and Executive Vice President

Caroline A. Hartill 51 Chief Scientific Officer and Vice President, Quality Assurance & Regulatory Affairs

Brian K. Hutchison joined RTI in December 2001 as President and Chief Executive Officer and was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors in December 2002. Since February 2008, his title has been Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Prior to joining RTI, Mr. Hutchison served 12 years in various positions for Stryker, a leading worldwide medical services company. In 1999, Mr. Hutchison was named Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Stryker Howmedica Osteonics division and was instrumental in implementing the merger between Pfizer s Howmedica Division and Stryker s Osteonics Division. Mr. Hutchison last position at Stryker was Vice President, Worldwide Product Development and Distribution. Mr. Hutchison earned a bachelor s degree in business administration from Grand Valley State University in 1981. Mr. Hutchison also completed the Program for Management Development from Harvard Business School in 1995.

Thomas F. Rose was named Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since February 2008. Mr. Rose also serves as Corporate Secretary. Mr. Rose joined RTI as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in May 2002. Mr. Rose served the previous ten years as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at A. M. Todd Group, an international flavor and fragrance company. From 1988 to 1991, Mr. Rose was Vice President and Corporate Controller for Sotheby s Holdings Inc. in New York. Prior to this, Mr. Rose was an audit partner with Ernst & Whinney (currently Ernst & Young) in New York, providing audit, tax and consulting services for clients in a variety of industries for 15 years. Mr. Rose earned a bachelor s degree in business administration from Western Michigan University in Kalamazoo. Mr. Rose has also completed numerous executive education courses at University of Michigan and Northwestern University focusing on strategy and organizational issues. Mr. Thomas F. Rose is not related to Mr. Roger W. Rose.

Roger W. Rose has served as our President of RTI Donor Services and Executive Vice President since February 2008. Mr. Rose joined RTI in October 2002 as Vice President of Donor Services and assumed additional responsibility for distribution and marketing in October 2003. Mr. Rose was named Executive Vice President with a focus on sports medicine in August 2004. Prior to joining RTI, Mr. Rose served seven years in various positions with Stryker, including Vice President of Sales and Vice President of Marketing for Stryker s medical division. Mr. Rose also has extensive experience in healthcare sales and marketing with 20 years of service with healthcare companies such as Stryker, Johnson & Johnson, Herman Miller and Nellcor. Mr. Rose holds a bachelor s degree in business administration from Western Michigan University and has completed continuing education courses in finance, medical marketing and leadership. Mr. Roger W. Rose is not related to Mr. Thomas F. Rose.

Caroline A. Hartill was named Chief Scientific Officer in March 2007. Ms. Hartill joined RTI in November 2001 and was named Vice President of Quality Assurance and Regulatory Affairs in January 2003. Prior to that time, Ms. Hartill was an independent consultant working with biotechnology and medical device companies worldwide. Earlier, Ms. Hartill worked for the British Standards Institute (UK) and the Ministry of Defence (UK). Ms. Hartill earned a bachelor s degree in health sciences from Birmingham University in England, as well as a master s degree in management from the University of Wolverhampton in England. Ms. Hartill has also earned master s level credits in sterilization science from Manchester University.

12

#### **EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION**

## **Compensation Discussion and Analysis**

Oversight of Executive Compensation Program

*General.* The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors (the Compensation Committee ), presently consisting of Messrs. Chapman, Smith, Crowninshield and Simpson, is responsible for the planning, review and administration of our executive compensation programs. The Board of Directors adopted a written charter for the Compensation Committee on March 5, 2004, a copy of which is available on our website at www.rtix.com/CompensationCharter.aspx.

Our primary corporate objective is to provide a superior return to stockholders. To support this objective, we believe we must attract, retain and motivate top quality executive talent. The executive compensation program we adopt is a critical tool in this process. The executive compensation program is designed to link executive compensation to our performance through at-risk compensation opportunities, providing significant reward to executives based on our success. The executive compensation program consists of base salary, annual cash incentive opportunities and long-term incentives represented by stock options and restricted stock agreements.

The Compensation Committee oversees our executive compensation programs. Our compensation programs include programs that are designed specifically for (1) our executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table and other officers of the Company; and (2) a broad-base of Company employees. Additionally, the Compensation Committee is charged with the review and approval of all annual compensation decisions relating to executive officers and our annual compensation guidelines for all other company officers and employees.

The Compensation Committee is composed entirely of independent, non-management members of the Board of Directors. Members of the Compensation Committee are eligible for awards under our Omnibus Stock Plan and 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. No Compensation Committee member participates in any of the Company s other employee compensation programs. The Board of Directors has determined that none of the Compensation Committee members have any material business relationships with the Company.

The responsibilities of the Compensation Committee include the following:

reviewing and approving the Company s general compensation strategy and objectives;

reviewing and approving the Company s goals and objectives relevant to the executive officers compensation annually, evaluating the executive officers performance in light of such goals and objectives, and determining the executive officers compensation level based on this evaluation and other relevant information;

reviewing and approving annually the individual elements of total compensation for the executive officers, including annual salary, annual bonus and long-term incentive compensation, and reporting such determinations to the Board of Directors, as required;

reviewing and discussing with management the disclosures made in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis prior to the filing of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K and Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of stockholders, and recommending to the Board of Directors whether the Compensation Discussion and Analysis should be included in the Form 10-K and Proxy Statement;

maintaining and reviewing with the Board of Directors a list of potential successors to the Chief Executive Officer, in the event of an emergency or retirement of the Chief Executive Officer on short notice;

making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding employment agreements, severance agreements, change in control provisions and agreements and any special supplemental benefits applicable to the Company s executive officers;

assuring that the Company s incentive compensation program, including the annual and long-term incentive plans, is administered in a manner consistent with the Company s compensation strategy in regards to participation, target awards, corporate financial goals and actual awards paid to executive officers;

approving and/or recommending to the Board of Directors new incentive compensation plans and equity-based compensation plans, and submitting for stockholder approval where appropriate;

reviewing the levels of stock ownership by the executive officers of the Company; and

reviewing the Company s employee benefit programs and recommending for approval all changes that may be subject to the approval of the stockholders or the Board of Directors.

## **Compensation Consultant**

In alternating years, the Compensation Committee retains an independent compensation consultant to assist with the annual review of executive compensation levels. The compensation consultant assists the Compensation Committee by providing comparative market data on compensation practices and programs based on an analysis of peer competitors, and also provide guidance on industry best practices. The Compensation Committee retained an independent compensation consultant to provide that service at the end of 2007 for 2008 compensation levels, but did not retain a compensation consultant during 2008.

The independent compensation consultant assists the Compensation Committee by providing comparative market data on compensation practices and programs based on an analysis of peer competitors, and also provides guidance on industry best practices.

## **Peer Group and Compensation Targets**

With the assistance of Management, the Compensation Committee selected a compensation peer group of companies. The peer group consisted of seventeen publicly-traded medical device related companies which had executives in positions that were of similar scope to RTI Biologics executives. Peer group companies included Wright Medical Technologies, Inc., Symmetry Medical, Inc., Medical Action Industries, Inc., EV3, Inc., LifeCell Corporation, Angiodynamics, Inc., Exactech, Inc., Osteotech, Inc., Nuvasive, Inc., Aspect Medical Systems, Inc., CryoLife, Inc., Alphatec Holdings, Inc., Kensey Nash Corporation, Lifecore Biomedical, Inc., Synovis Life Technologies, Inc., and Orthovita, Inc. Prior to our merger with Tutogen Medical, Inc. the peer group also included Tutogen.

## Overview of Compensation Philosophy and Program

In order to recruit and retain the most qualified and competent individuals as executive officers, we strive to maintain a compensation program that is competitive in the global labor market. The purpose of our compensation program is to reward exceptional organizational and individual performance.

The following compensation objectives are considered in setting the compensation programs for our executive officers:

drive and reward performance which supports the Company s core values of integrity, leadership and performance;

provide a significant percentage of total compensation that is at-risk, or variable, based on predetermined performance criteria;

design competitive total compensation and rewards programs to enhance our ability to attract and retain knowledgeable and experienced executive officers; and

# Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

set compensation and incentive levels that reflect competitive market practices.

14

## **Compensation Elements and Rationale for Pay Mix Decisions**

To reward both short and long-term performance in the compensation program and in furtherance of our compensation objectives noted above, our executive compensation philosophy includes the following four principles:

## (i) Compensation should be related to performance

The Compensation Committee believes that a significant portion of an executive officer s compensation should be tied not only to individual performance, but also to the performance of the executive officer s function and to Company performance measured against both financial and non-financial goals and objectives. We also place emphasis on relative performance within the Peer Group as a means to ensure that we deliver stockholder value.

During periods when performance meets or exceeds the established objectives, executive officers should be paid at or more than expected levels, respectively. When our performance does not meet key objectives, incentive award payments, if any, should be less than such levels.

## (ii) Incentive compensation should represent a large portion of executive officers, total officers compensation

The Company intends to minimize the amount of fixed compensation paid to executive officers in order to minimize costs when Company performance is not optimal. The larger portion of compensation should be paid in the form of short-term and long-term incentives, which are calculated and paid based primarily on financial measures of profitability and stockholder value creation. Executive officers have the incentive of increasing Company profitability and stockholder return in order to earn the major portion of their compensation package.

## (iii) Compensation levels should be competitive

The Compensation Committee reviews the survey data to ensure that the compensation program is competitive. We believe that a competitive compensation program will enhance our ability to attract and retain executive officers.

## (iv) Incentive compensation should balance short and long-term performance

The Compensation Committee seeks to structure a balance between achieving strong short-term annual results and ensuring our long-term viability and success. To reinforce the importance of balancing these perspectives, executive officers are regularly provided both short and long-term incentives.

We provide executive officers and many employees with various means of becoming stockholders of the Company. These opportunities include stock option grants and restricted stock awards.

The Compensation Committee believes that the mix of long-term incentives allows us to deliver long-term incentive awards aligned with the interests of stockholders. Stock options and restricted stock awards create a focus on share price appreciation. Finally, stock options and restricted stock awards serve as a retention tool to ensure that recipients remain at the Company.

15

## **Financial Metrics Used in Compensation Programs**

Several financial metrics are commonly referenced in defining Company performance for executive officer compensation. These metrics are defined here and their use in annual and long-term incentive programs is described below.

#### (i) Net Income

We use Net Income as a metric in the bonus plan for executive officers in order to measure growth and reflect how well we deliver value to our shareholders from our business operations. Net income is a GAAP measure.

#### (ii) Operating Cash Flow

A related metric used in the annual incentive calculations is operating cash flow. Operating cash flow is a GAAP measure and an indication of liquidity. We believe that Operating Cash Flow is useful because it is a consistent measure of the underlying results of our business. Furthermore, management uses it internally as a measure of the performance of our operations.

## (iii) Increase in Revenue

A key driver for net income and operating cash flow are increases in revenues. Revenue growth is a reflection of our ability to successfully bring new products to market, gain market share and expand the many markets that we serve. Increases in revenue are directly related to creation of shareholder value at the Company.

## **Review of Executive Officer Performance**

The Compensation Committee reviews, on an annual basis, each compensation element of an executive officer. In each case, the Compensation Committee takes into account the scope of responsibilities and experience and balances these against competitive salary levels.

In addition, each year, the Chief Executive Officer presents to the Compensation Committee his evaluation of each executive officer, which includes a review of contribution and performance over the past year, strengths, weaknesses, development plans and succession potential. Following this presentation and a review of the survey data, the Compensation Committee makes its own assessments and approves compensation for each executive officer.

## **Components of the Executive Compensation Program**

					_								
Th	e Comp	ensation Co	mmittee	helieves	the total	compensation at	nd benefits ni	noram for ex	xecutive office	rs should	consist of	the fol	lowing.

base salaries;
annual incentive plan;
long-term incentive compensation; and
retirement, and health and welfare benefits.

## **Base Salaries**

Executive officer s base salaries are targeted at median levels of the survey data. Base salaries are determined by evaluating an executive officer s level of responsibility and experience and the Company s performance.

Increases to base salaries, if any, are driven primarily by individual performance and comparative data from the survey data. Individual performance is evaluated by reviewing the executive officer success in achieving business results, promoting our core values and demonstrating leadership abilities.

In setting the base salary of the executive officers for 2008, the Compensation Committee reviewed the compensation of comparable executive officers from the survey data. The Compensation Committee also considered the Company s continuing achievement of its short- and long-term goals to:

achieve specific net income, operating cash flow and revenue goals;

communicate strategy and financial results effectively; and

develop leadership capabilities.

The Compensation Committee based its compensation decisions on the Company s performance related to the objectives listed above. The Compensation Committee does not rely solely on predetermined formulas or a limited set of criteria when it evaluates the performance of the executive officers.

The Compensation Committee reviews the survey data annually. The survey data and general economic conditions and marketplace compensation trends are evaluated with the assistance of an outside consultant. The Compensation Committee usually adjusts base salaries for executive officers when:

the current compensation demonstrates a significant deviation from the market data;

recognizing outstanding individual performance; or

recognizing an increase in responsibility.

The salaries paid to the executive officers during 2008 are shown in the Summary Compensation Table.

## **Annual Bonus Plan**

The Annual Bonus Plan provides executive officers with the opportunity to earn cash bonuses based on the achievement of specific Company-wide performance goals. The Compensation Committee approves the design of the annual incentive component of our compensation program to ensure alignment of executive officer pay with our annual (short-term) performance. Incentive bonuses are generally paid in cash in February or March of each year for the prior year s performance.

The Compensation Committee approves a target incentive payout as a percentage of the base salary earned during the incentive period for each executive officer. These target percentages are based on competitive practices for each comparable position in the survey data. The incentive target percentage represents the executive officer s annual bonus opportunity if the annual performance goals of the incentive plan are achieved.

The Annual Bonus Plan establishes a set of financial metrics for each executive officer that will be used in the determination of that officer s bonus. These metrics are selected to drive annual performance. The Compensation Committee retains discretion to take other factors into account in determining bonuses and to award no bonuses even if performance criteria are met.

The 2008 targets and bonus criteria for each of our executive officers were as follows:

			Bonus Criteria
		Bonus	
Name	Offices/Position	Target (1)	(each weighted equally)
Brian K. Hutchison	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer	62%	Net Income and Operating Cash Flow
Guy L. Mayer	President	60%	Net Income, Operating Cash Flow and Revenue
Thomas F. Rose	Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary	50%	Net Income and Operating Cash Flow
Roger W. Rose	President, RTI Donor Services and Executive Vice President	50%	Net Income, Operating Cash Flow and Revenue
Caroline Hartill	Chief Scientific Officer and Vice President, Quality Assurance & Regulatory Affairs	46%	Net Income and Operating Cash Flow

## (1) Represents percentage of salary.

The amounts of the bonuses are based upon a comparison of actual performance to budgeted goals approved by the Board of Directors. The Board sets budget goals that it believes are achievable, but that represent significant improvements over prior year sperformance. Our budget goals for 2008 were \$15.6 million of Net Income, \$17.8 million of Operating Cash Flow and \$184.3 million of Revenue.

Bonuses for 2008 were approved as follows: Mr. Hutchison (\$44,278), Mr. T. Rose (\$31,654), Mr. R. Rose (\$31,654), Ms. Hartill (\$29,864), and Mr. Mayer (\$17,759). These bonuses were awarded by the Compensation Committee based on achieving the Company s financial targets which were adjusted to remove the non-reoccurring intangible impairment charges, during 2008 and approved by the Board of Directors. These bonuses were paid in March 2009. The Compensation Committee determined to award discretionary bonuses for 2008 due to individual achievements related to their areas of responsibility. The discretionary amounts (which are included in the bonus amounts set forth above) were Mr. Hutchison (\$20,000), Mr. T. Rose (\$20,000), Mr. R. Rose (\$20,000) and Ms. Hartill (\$20,000).

## **Long-Term Incentive Compensation**

Long-term incentives comprise a significant portion of an executive officer s total direct compensation package. Long-term incentives are consistent with our at-risk pay philosophy. The Compensation Committee s objective is to provide executive officers with long-term incentive award opportunities that are consistent with the survey data and based on each executive officer s individual performance. Currently, we provide executive officers with stock options and restricted stock awards.

The Compensation Committee approved long-term incentive awards to executive officers in 2008 consisting of stock options.

The Compensation Committee approves the total stock options and restricted stock awards that will be made available to executive officers as well as the size of individual grants for each executive officer. The amounts granted to executive officers vary each year and are based on the executive officer s performance, the survey data, as well as the executive officer s total compensation package. Previous awards and grants, whether vested or unvested, have no impact on the current year s awards and grants.

The long-term incentive information related to the executive officers during 2008 is included in the Summary Compensation Table. Additional information on long-term incentive awards is shown in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table and the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table.

## **Stock Options**

An important objective of the long-term incentive program is to strengthen the relationship between the long-term value of our stock price and the potential financial gain for employees. Stock options provide executive officers with the opportunity to purchase our Common Stock at a price fixed on the grant date regardless of future market price. Stock options generally are subject to stock option agreements under which one-fifth of the options vests and become exercisable on each anniversary of the original award date.

A stock option becomes valuable only if our Common Stock price increases above the option exercise price and the holder of the option remains employed during the period required for the option to vest thus, providing an incentive for an option holder to remain employed by the Company. In addition, stock options link a portion of an employee s compensation to stockholders interests by providing an incentive to make decisions designed to increase the market price of our stock.

The exercise prices of the stock options granted to the executive officers during 2008 are shown in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table. Additional information on these grants, including the number of shares subject to each grant, also is shown in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table.

Options generally are granted annually at the first board of directors meeting of the year, at the same time as grants to the general eligible employee population, after final determination of our previous year operating results. Our practice is that the exercise price for each stock option is the market value on the date of grant. Under our option plans, the Option Price shall not be less than the Fair Market Value of the shares on the date of grant.

There is a limited term in which the executive officers can exercise stock options, known as the option term. The option term is generally ten years from the date of grant. At the end of the option term, the right to purchase any unexercised options expires. Option holders generally forfeit any unvested options if their employment with us terminates.

In certain instances, stock options may vest on an accelerated schedule. Retirement may trigger accelerated vesting if an executive officer s age plus years of service with us is greater than or equal to 65 years. In this instance, all unvested options will vest as of the retirement date, and the executive officer will have three or five years to exercise the options depending on the terms outlined in the stock option award agreement. However, the exercise window may not exceed the original option term.

Additionally, death or disability while employed with the Company will cause all stock options to vest automatically and become exercisable per the terms outlined in the stock option award agreement.

## **Restricted Stock Awards**

Restricted stock awards ( RSAs ) are intended to retain key employees, including the executive officers, through vesting periods. Restricted stock awards provide the opportunity for capital accumulation and more predictable long-term incentive value.

RSAs generally are awarded periodically and determined by the Compensation Committee. RSAs are shares of our Common Stock that are awarded with the restriction that the executive officer remains with us until the date of vesting. RSAs generally vest one-third annually after the original award date. The purpose of granting RSAs is to encourage ownership of our Common Stock by, and retention of, our executive officers. Executive officers are allowed to vote RSAs as a stockholder based on the number of shares held free of restriction.

Any unvested RSAs generally are forfeited if the executive officer terminates employment with the Company or if the executive officer fails to meet the continuing employment restriction outlined in the RSA agreement. In the event of death or disability, any unvested RSAs are immediately vested.

No RSAs were awarded during 2008.

## **Tax Implications of Executive Compensation**

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code ) places a limit of \$1,000,000 on the amount of compensation that may be deducted by the Company in any year with respect to the executive officers unless the compensation is performance-based compensation as described in Section 162(m) and the related regulations, as well as pursuant to a plan approved by the Company s stockholders. We may from time to time pay compensation to our executive officers that may not be deductible, including discretionary bonuses or other types of compensation outside of our plans.

Although the Compensation Committee has generally attempted to structure executive compensation so as to preserve deductibility, it also believes that there are circumstances where our interests are best served by maintaining flexibility in the way compensation is provided, even if it might result in the non-deductibility of certain compensation under the Code.

Although equity awards may be deductible for tax purposes by the Company, the accounting rules pursuant to APB 25 and FAS 123(R) require that the portion of the tax benefit in excess of the financial compensation cost be recorded to paid-in-capital.

## **Retirement, Health and Welfare Benefits**

We offer a variety of health and welfare and retirement programs to all eligible employees. The executive officers generally are eligible for the same benefit programs on the same basis as the rest of the broad-based employees. The health and welfare programs are intended to protect employees against catastrophic loss and encourage a healthy lifestyle. Our health and welfare programs include medical, wellness, pharmacy, dental, vision, life insurance and accidental death and disability. Coverage under the life insurance and disability programs offer benefit amounts specific to executive officers.

We offer retirement programs that are intended to supplement the employee s personal savings and social security. The program includes RTI Biologics, Inc. Retirement Plan, which is a 401(k) plan. All U.S. employees, including executive officers, are generally eligible for the 401(k) Plan.

We adopted the 401(k) Plan to enable employees to save for retirement through a tax-advantaged combination of employee and Company contributions and to provide employees the opportunity to directly manage their retirement plan assets through a variety of investment options. The 401(k) Plan allows eligible employees to elect to contribute up to 100% of their eligible compensation to an investment trust. Eligible compensation generally means all wages, salaries and commissions from the Company. Employee contributions are matched in cash by us at the rate of \$1.00 per \$1.00 employee contribution for the first 6% of the employee s salary. Employee s contributions vest immediately and the employer s contributions vest after the employee has three years of service with the Company. The 401(k) Plan provides for over nineteen different investment options, for which the participant has sole discretion in determining how both the employer and employee contributions are invested. The 401(k) Plan does not provide our employees the option to invest directly in the Company s stock. The 401(k) Plan offers in-service withdrawals in the form of loans, hardship distributions and age 59.5 distributions. The 401(k) Plan benefits are payable pursuant to the participant s election.

## **Perquisites and Perquisite Allowance Payments**

Executive officers are provided with the following benefits as a supplement to their other compensation:

Life Insurance & Accidental Death & Dismemberment Coverage: We pay 100% of the premium for both term life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment coverage, equal to \$500,000 for executive officers. In addition, we also pay 100% of the premium for a \$50,000 term life insurance policy for the executive officer, and all officers and employees of the company

20

Short-Term and Long-Term Disability: We pay 100% of the premium cost for these benefit programs for executive officers. The short-term disability program provides income replacement at 60% of base pay level for up to eleven weeks or recovery. The program then pays 60% of the base pay level beginning on week twelve up to age 65.

Executive Physical Program: At our expense each executive officer is allowed to have a complete and professional personal physical exam on an annual basis.

## **Severance Plan**

The Company did not have a severance plan for executive officers during 2008.

## **Employment Agreements**

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Hutchison effective December 1, 2001. The agreement provided for an annual base salary of \$350,000 for the first two years, after which his salary has been reviewed annually by our Board of Directors. Mr. Hutchison s base salary for 2008 was \$436,962. The agreement had an initial term ending on November 30, 2004, and has been renewed for successive one-year periods. Mr. Hutchison is also eligible to receive an annual bonus in an amount to be determined by our Board of Directors provided we achieve certain specified goals. When he entered into the employment agreement with us, Mr. Hutchison received a sign-on bonus and related tax gross-up totaling \$61,400, temporary housing and moving expenses and an option to purchase 500,000 shares of our common stock. In January 2008, March 2007, March 2006, June 2005, April 2004, April 2003 and May 2002, Mr. Hutchison received additional options to purchase 35,000, 30,000, 40,000, 100,000, 40,000, 20,000 and 600,000, respectively, shares of our common stock. All of these options are subject to stock option agreements under which one-fifth of the option vests on each anniversary of the original award date.

Our agreement with Mr. Hutchison provides for us to pay for a \$1.0 million life insurance policy payable to a beneficiary of Mr. Hutchison s choosing. Mr. Hutchison is also eligible to receive standard employee benefits and matching contributions to our 401(k) plan of up to 6% of his salary up to the maximum excludable dollar amount permitted by the Internal Revenue Code. If we terminate Mr. Hutchison without cause, he will be entitled to severance pay equal to his salary and benefits for one year from the date of termination. In the event of termination for cause, Mr. Hutchison will not be entitled to severance pay. In the case of voluntary termination or termination for cause, Mr. Hutchison will be precluded from competing with us for two years following termination. In the event of termination without cause, Mr. Hutchison will be precluded from competing with us for one year.

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Guy L. Mayer effective February 27, 2008, which has a term of two years. The initial annual salary is \$400,000, subject to a potential upward adjustment after the first year. In addition, Mr. Mayer was eligible to receive a discretionary cash bonus of 60% of his base salary in the event the plans and targets that are determined by our Board of Directors are met. Further, Mr. Mayer was eligible to receive stock option grants and other equity-based awards at such times and in such amounts as determined by our Board of Directors or compensation committee. In the event that Mr. Mayer voluntarily terminated the employment agreement, he would have been entitled only to his salary and other benefits otherwise due him through his last day on payroll. Pursuant to the terms of the employment agreement, Mr. Mayer and the Chief Executive Officer agreed that Mr. Mayer would transition to the role of consultant effective as of February 27, 2009. Accordingly, we have engaged Mr. Mayer as a consultant for the remainder of the term of the employment agreement in exchange for compensation equal to his regular annual salary.

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Thomas Rose effective May 1, 2002. The agreement provided for an annual base salary of \$180,000 for the first two years, after which his salary has been reviewed annually. Mr. Thomas Rose s base salary for 2008 was \$260,096. The agreement had an initial term ending on April 30, 2004, and has been renewed for successive one-year periods. Mr. Thomas Rose is also eligible to

21

receive a bonus at any time during the year, or after the close of the year. When he entered into the agreement, Mr. Thomas Rose also received an option to purchase 200,000 shares of our common stock. In January 2008, March 2007, March 2006, June 2005, April 2004 and April 2002, Mr. Thomas Rose received additional options to purchase 30,000, 30,000, 20,000, 50,000, 20,000, and 20,000, respectively, shares of our common stock. All of these options are subject to stock option agreements under which one-fifth of the option vests on each anniversary date of the original award date. If we terminate Mr. Thomas Rose without cause, he will be entitled to severance pay equal to his salary and benefits for one year from the date of termination. In the event of termination for cause, Mr. Thomas Rose will not be entitled to severance pay. In the case of voluntary termination or termination for cause, Mr. Thomas Rose will be precluded from competing with us for two years following termination. In the event of termination without cause, Mr. Thomas Rose will be precluded from competing with us for one year.

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Roger Rose effective October 4, 2002. The agreement provided for an annual base salary of \$175,000 for the first year, after which his salary has been reviewed annually. Mr. Roger Rose s base salary for 2008 was \$260,096. The agreement had an initial term ending on October 20, 2005, and has been renewed for successive one-year periods. Mr. Roger Rose is also eligible to receive a bonus during the first calendar quarter of each year of the agreement. When he entered into the agreement, Mr. Roger Rose also received an option to purchase 100,000 shares of our common stock and a signing bonus of \$40,000. In January 2008, March 2007, March 2006, June 2005, August 2004, April 2004 and April 2003, Mr. Roger Rose received additional options to purchase 30,000, 30,000, 20,000, 50,000, 20,000, 20,000, and 20,000, respectively, shares of our common stock. All of these options are subject to stock option agreements under which one-fifth of the option vests on each anniversary date of the original award date. If we terminate Mr. Roger Rose without cause, he will be entitled to severance pay equal to his salary and benefits for one year from the date of termination. In the event of termination for cause, Mr. Roger Rose will not be entitled to severance pay. In the case of voluntary termination or termination for cause, Mr. Roger Rose will be precluded from competing with us for two years following termination. In the event of termination without cause, Mr. Roger Rose will be precluded from competing with us for one year.

## **Change in Control Agreements**

The Company does not have a Change in Control Agreement in place for executive officers.

## **Indemnification Agreements**

The Company does not have indemnification agreements with executive officers.

## **Restricted Stock Awards**

Upon vesting of a restricted stock award and after the payment of the taxes due as a result of vesting, the executive officer is allowed to sell his vested shares.

## **Exercise of Stock Options**

Upon exercise of a stock option and after netting down the shares to pay the taxes due as a result of exercise, the executive officer is allowed to sell his vested stock options.

22

The following table sets forth information concerning all cash and non-cash compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our chief executive officer, our chief financial officer and each of the other three most highly compensated executive officers who were serving as executive officers at December 31, 2008 for the years indicated.

## **Summary Compensation Table**

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) (14)	Option Awards (\$) (14)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total (\$)
Brian K. Hutchison	2008	436,962	44,278	22,623	199,998	20,701(1)	724,562
Chairman, and	2007	414,615	97,500	23,145	421,798	17,548(2)	974,606
Chief Executive Officer	2006	400,000		18,606	1,289,979	19,964(3)	1,728,549
Guy L. Mayer President	2008	318,496	17,759			10,844(4)	347,099
Thomas F. Rose	2008	260,096	31,654	11,311	118,087	18,554(5)	439,702
Executive Vice President,	2007	241,939	48,750	11,572	201,486	20,838(6)	524,585
	2006	215,898	50,000	9,303	259,211	19,517(7)	553,929
Chief Financial Officer and							
Secretary							
Roger W. Rose President, RTI Donor Services	2008 2007	260,096 247,308	31,654 61,116	11,311 11,572	143,216 274,569	20,495(8) 22,322(9)	466,772 616,887
Executive Vice President	2006	234,951	25,000	9,303	271,463	187,587(10)	728,304
Caroline A. Hartill	2008	239,288	29,864	11,311	122,930	15,841(11)	419,234
Chief Scientific Officer	2007	223,270	37,500	11,572	155,725	13,152(12)	441,219
	2006	201,446	50,000	9,303	195,260	11,925(13)	467,934
Vice President of Quality							
Assurance and							
Regulatory Affairs							

- (1) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$15,500, payment of \$3,325 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$1,876 for term life insurance.
- (2) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$10,363, payment of \$5,309 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$1,876 for term life insurance.
- (3) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$13,200, payment of \$4,888 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$1,876 for term life insurance.
- (4) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$6,933, and payment of \$3,911 for health and dental insurance.

(5)

# Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$13,800, payment of \$3,102 for health and dental insurance, payment of \$1,652 for term life insurance.

- (6) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$14,100, payment of \$5,086 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$1,652 for term life insurance.
- (7) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$13,200, payment of \$4,665 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$1,652 for term life insurance.
- (8) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$14,212, payment of \$5,189 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$1,094 for term life insurance.
- (9) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$15,919, payment of \$5,309 for health and dental insurance, payment of \$1,094 for term life insurance.

23

- (10) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$11,981, payment of \$4,665 for health and dental insurance, payment of \$1,094 for term life insurance, payment of \$129,286 for relocation and payment of \$40,561 for temporary housing and commuting.
- (11) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$13,946, payment of \$916 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$979 for term life insurance.
- (12) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$11,296, payment of \$877 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$979 for term life insurance.
- (13) Includes matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan of \$10,114, payment of \$832 for health and dental insurance and payment of \$979 for term life insurance.
- (14) Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes during 2008, in accordance with FAS 123(R), and thus includes amounts from stock options and restricted stock awards granted in and prior to 2008. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in footnote 3 to our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008.

24

## GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

This table discloses the actual numbers of stock options granted during 2008 and the grant date fair value of these awards. It also captures potential future payouts under the Company s non-equity incentive plans.

## **Grants of Plan-Based Awards**

	Grant		uture Payouts U centive Plan Av Target		All Other Stock Awards: Number of Shares of Stock or	All Other Option Awards: Number of Securities Underlying Options	Exercise or Base Price of Option Awards	Grant Date Fair Value of Stock and Option Awards
Name	Date	( <b>\$</b> )	(\$)	( <b>\$</b> )	Units (#)	(#)	(\$/Sh)	(\$)
Brian K. Hutchison	1/28/2008	, · · /	271,000	271,000	` '	35,000(2)	7.45	158,333
Guy L. Mayer			191,000	191,000				
Thomas F. Rose	1/28/2008		130,000	130,000		30,000(2)	7.45	135,714
Roger W. Rose	1/28/2008		130,000	130,000		30,000(2)	7.45	135,714
Caroline A. Hartill	1/28/2008		110,000	110,000		30,000(2)	7.45	135,714

<sup>(1)</sup> These amounts represent the threshold, target, and maximum bonuses payable to each executive under the Company s 2008 Bonus Plan.

25

<sup>(2)</sup> Such options were granted on January 28, 2008 pursuant to our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. Subject to the recipient s continued service with us, 20% of these options will become exercisable on each anniversary date from January 28, 2009 through January 28, 2013. Such options will vest immediately upon a change of control of the Company.

# OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following table shows outstanding stock option awards classified as exercisable and unexercisable as of December 31, 2008 for executive officers. The table shows unvested and unearned stock awards (both time-based awards and performance-contingent) assuming a market value of \$2.76 a share (the closing market price of the Company s stock on December 31, 2008).

## **Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End**

	Option Awards					Stock Awards			
Name Brian K. Hutchison (1)	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable 499,995 52,253	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable	Option Exercise Price (\$) 4.80 6.18	Option Expiration Date 5/29/2012 6/27/2015	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#)	Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (\$) (6)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$)	
	6,000 10,506 20,000 32,000 500,000	24,000 24,000 35,000 8,000	7.25 7.28 7.45 9.33 10.04 10.13	3/2/2017 3/7/2016 1/28/2018 4/28/2013 4/26/2014 12/3/2011	3,333	9,199			
Guy L. Mayer (2)	305,000 61,000 91,500 91,500		2.14 3.42 4.93 9.51	1/3/2015 9/26/2015 11/6/2016 11/16/2017					
Thomas F. Rose (3)	200,000 30,000 6,000 8,000 20,000 16,000	20,000 24,000 12,000 30,000 4,000	4.80 6.18 7.25 7.28 7.45 9.33 10.04	5/29/2012 6/27/2015 3/2/2017 3/7/2016 1/28/2018 4/28/2013 4/26/2014	1,667	4,601			
Roger W. Rose (4)	30,000 6,000 8,000 100,000 16,000 20,000 16,000	20,000 24,000 12,000 30,000 4,000	6.18 7.25 7.28 7.45 8.70 9.18 9.33 10.04	6/27/2015 3/2/2017 3/7/2016 1/28/2018 10/21/2012 8/9/2014 4/28/2013 4/26/2014	1,667	4,601			
Caroline A. Hartill (5)	40,000 30,000 6,000	20,000 24,000	4.80 6.18 7.25	5/29/2012 6/27/2015 3/2/2017					

Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

8,000	12,000 30,000	7.28 7.45	3/7/2016 1/28/2018			
20,000		9.33	4/28/2013			
16,000	4,000	10.04	4/26/2014			
40,000		10.07	11/12/2011			
				1,667	4,601	

26

(1) Mr. Hutchison holds the following stock options which vest 20% per year over a five-year period from the date of grant and a restricted stock award which vests 33.3% per year over a three-year period from the date of grant:

500,000 stock options granted on May 29, 2002. 100,000 stock options vested on each of May 29, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

100,000 stock options granted on June 27, 2005. 20,000 stock options vested on each of June 27, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 20,000 stock options will vest on each of June 27, 2009 and 2010.

30,000 stock options granted on March 2, 2007. 6,000 stock options vested on March 2, 2008 and 2009. 6,000 stock options will vest on each of March 2, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

40,000 stock options granted on March 7, 2006. 8,000 stock options vested on each of March 7, 2007, 2008 and 2009. 8,000 stock options will vest on each of March 7, 2010 and 2011.

35,000 stock options granted on January 28, 2008. 7,000 stock options vested on of January 28, 2009. 7,000 stock options will vest on each of January 28, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

20,000 stock options granted on April 28, 2003. 4,000 stock options vested on each of April 28, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

40,000 stock options granted on April 26, 2004. 8,000 stock options vested on April 26 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 8,000 stock options will vest on April 26, 2009

500,000 stock options granted on December 3, 2001. 100,000 stock options vested on each of December 3, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

10,000 restricted stock awards granted March 2, 2006. 3334 restricted stock awards vested on March 7, 2007. 3,333 restricted stock awards vested on March 7, 2008 and 2009.

(2) Mr. Guy Mayer holds the following stock options which vested 100% as a result of the merger with Tutogen Medical Inc., effective February 27, 2008: 305,000 stock options granted on January 3, 2005. 61,000 stock options vested on each of January 3, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 122,000 stock options vested on February 27, 2008 as a result of the merger with Tutogen Medical Inc.

61,000 stock options granted on September 26, 2005. 12,200 stock options vested on each of September 26, 2006, and 2007. 36,600 stock options vested on February 27, 2008 as a result of the merger with Tutogen Medical Inc.

91,500 stock options granted on November 6, 2006. 18,300 stock options vested on November 6, 2007. 73,200 stock options vested on February 27, 2008 as a result of the merger with Tutogen Medical Inc.

91,500 stock options granted on November 16, 2007. 91,500 stock options vested on February 27, 2008 as a result of the merger with Tutogen Medical Inc.

(3) Mr. Thomas Rose holds the following stock options which vest 20% per year over a five-year period from the date of grant and a restricted stock award which vests 33.3% per year over a three-year period from the date of grant: 200,000 stock options granted on May 29, 2002. 40,000 stock options vested on each of May 29, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

50,000 stock options granted on June 27, 2005. 10,000 stock options vested on each of June 27, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 10,000 stock options will vest on each of June 27, 2009 and 2010.

30,000 stock options granted on March 2, 2007. 6,000 stock options vested on March 2, 2008 and 2009. 6,000 stock options will vest on each of March 2, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

20,000 stock options granted on March 7, 2006. 4,000 stock options vested on each of March 7, 2007, 2008 and 2009. 4,000 stock options will vest on each of March 7, 2010 and 2011.

# Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

30,000 stock options granted on January 28, 2008. 6,000 stock options vested on of January 28, 2009. 6,000 stock options will vest on each of January 28, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

20,000 stock options granted on April 28, 2003. 4,000 stock options vested on each of April 28, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

20,000 stock options granted on April 26, 2004. 4,000 stock options vested on each of April 26, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 4,000 stock options will vest on April 26, 2009.

5,000 restricted stock awards granted on March 7, 2006. 1,667 restricted stock awards vested on each of March 7, 2007 and 2008. 1,666 restricted stock awards vested on March 7, 2009.

(4) Mr. Roger Rose holds the following stock options which vest 20% per year over a five-year period from the date of grant and a restricted stock award which vests 33.3% per year over a three-year period from the date of grant:

50,000 stock options granted on June 27, 2005. 10,000 stock options vested on each of June 27, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 10,000 stock options will vest on each of June 27, 2009 and 2010.

30,000 stock options granted on March 2, 2007. 6,000 stock options vested on March 2, 2008 and 2009. 6,000 stock options will vest on each of March 2, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

20,000 stock options granted on March 7, 2006. 4,000 stock options vested on each of March 7, 2007, 2008, and 2009. 4,000 stock options will vest on each of March 7, 2010 and 2011.

30,000 stock options granted on January 28, 2008. 6,000 stock options vested on of January 28, 2009. 6,000 stock options will vest on each of January 28, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

100,000 stock options granted on October 21, 2002. 20,000 stock options vested on each of October 21, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

27

# Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

### **Table of Contents**

20,000 stock options granted on August 9, 2004. 4,000 stock options vested on each of August 9, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 4,000 stock options will vest on August 9, 2009.

20,000 stock options granted on April 28, 2003. 4,000 stock options vested on each of April 28, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

20,000 stock options granted on April 26, 2004. 4,000 stock options vested on each of April 26, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 4,000 stock options will vest on April 26, 2009.

5,000 restricted stock awards granted on March 7, 2006. 1,667 restricted stock awards vested on each of March 7, 2007 and 2008. 1,666 restricted stock awards vested on March 7, 2009.

(5) Ms. Hartill holds the following stock options which vest 20% per year over a five-year period from the date of grant and a restricted stock award which vests 33.3% per year over a three-year period from the date of grant:

40,000 stock options granted on May 29, 2002. 8,000 stock options vested on each of May 29, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

50,000 stock options granted on June 27, 2005. 10,000 stock options vested on each of June 27, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 10,000 stock options will vest on each of June 27, 2009 and 2010.

30,000 stock options granted on March 2, 2007. 6,000 stock options vested on March 2, 2008 and 2009. 6,000 stock options will vest on each of March 2, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

20,000 stock options granted on March 7, 2006. 4,000 stock options vested on each of March 7, 2007, 2008 and 2009. 4,000 stock options will vest on each of March 7, 2010 and 2011.

30,000 stock options granted on January 28, 2008. 6,000 stock options vested on of January 28, 2009. 6,000 stock options will vest on each of January 28, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

20,000 stock options granted on April 28, 2003. 4,000 stock options vested on each of April 28, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

20,000 stock options granted on April 26, 2004. 4,000 stock options vested on each of April 26, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. 4,000 stock options will vest on April 26, 2009.

40,000 stock options granted on November 12, 2001. 8,000 stock options vested on each of November 12, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

5,000 restricted stock awards granted on March 7, 2006. 1,667 restricted stock awards vested on each of March 7, 2007 and 2008. 1,666 restricted stock awards vested on March 7, 2009.

(6) Based on the closing price of our Common Stock of \$2.76 on The Nasdaq Stock Market on December 31, 2008.

28

### OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The following table sets forth information with respect to: (1) exercises of stock options during 2008 and (2) vested restricted stock awards held at December 31, 2008 by the persons named in the Summary Compensation Table.

# **Option Exercises and Stock Vested**

	Option Awards		Stock Awards		
	Number of Shares Acquired	Value Realized	Number of Shares Acquired	Value Realized	
	on Exercise	on Exercise	on Vesting	on Vesting	
Name	(#)	(#)	(#)	(#) (1)	
Brian K. Hutchison	13,246	\$ 37,543	6,667	\$ 18,401	
Guy L. Mayer					
Thomas F. Rose			3,334	9,202	
Roger W. Rose			3,334	9,202	
Caroline A. Hartill			3,334	9,202	

(1) Based on the closing price of our Common Stock of \$2.76 on The Nasdaq Stock Market on December 31, 2008.

#### DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Our directors who are also our employees or officers do not receive any compensation specifically related to their activities as directors, other than reimbursement for expenses incurred relating to their attendance at meetings of our Board of Directors. Our non-employee directors are eligible to receive an annual retainer of \$25,000, to be paid in quarterly installments. In addition, our non-employee directors are eligible to receive an attendance fee of \$5,000 per meeting, \$500 for teleconference meetings and \$2,000 per committee meeting and reimbursement for their expenses incurred relating to their attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors and committees thereof. The Chairman of our Audit Committee receives additional annual compensation of \$15,000 in recognition of the increased responsibilities of the Audit Committee as a result of rules and regulations enacted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and The Nasdaq Stock Market pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Chairman of our Compensation Committee receives additional annual compensation of \$10,000.

At the discretion of our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee, our directors are also eligible to receive awards under our Omnibus Stock Plan and our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. In 2006, our non-employee director, Philip R. Chapman, received a grant of 30,000 options at an exercise price of \$7.00 per share to purchase shares of our common stock. This option is subject to a stock option agreement under which one-third of the option vested each anniversary date of the grant. Upon Mr. Rainey is election as non-employee director on March 7, 2007, Mr. Rainey received a grant of an option to purchase 30,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$7.62 per share. Such option vested as to 10,000 shares on each of March 7, 2008 and March 7, 2009 and will vest as to an additional 10,000 shares on March 7, 2010. Upon the election of Julianne M. Bowler as non-employee director in May 14, 2007, Ms. Bowler received a grant of an option to purchase 30,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$9.57 per share. Such option vested as to 10,000 shares on May 14, 2008 and will vest as to an additional 10,000 shares on each of May 14, 2009 and May 14, 2010. In 2008, Messrs. Chapman, Gearen, Odrich, Simpson, Rainey, and Ms. Bowler received a grant of an option to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$7.45 per share. Upon our merger with Tutogen Medical, Inc., effective February 27, 2008, Messrs. Henseler, Smith, and Crowninshield received a grant of an option to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$8.20 per share. Former non-employee director, Neal Freeman, also received a grant of an option to purchase of our common stock at an exercise price of \$8.20 per share.

The following table discloses the cash fees and option awards and total compensation earned, paid or awarded, as the case may be, to each of the Company's directors during 2008. Columns disclosing compensation under the headings Stock Awards, Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation, Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings, and All Other Compensation are not included because no compensation in these categories was awarded to, earned by or paid to our directors in 2008.

30

# **Director Compensation**

	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash	Option Awards	Total
Name	(\$) (1)	<b>(\$) (2)</b>	(\$)
Philip R. Chapman	59,000	76,273(4)	135,273
Peter F. Gearen	55,000	82,632(4)	137,632
Michael J. Odrich	44,500(3)	82,632(4)	127,132
David J. Simpson	70,000	82,632(4)	152,632
Gregory P. Rainey	55,500	77,866(4)	133,366
Julianne M. Bowler	58,000	88,882(4)	146,882
Udo Henseler	45,286	36,462(5)	81,748
Adrian J. R. Smith	46,333	36,462(5)	82,795
Roy D. Crowninshield	49,833	36,462(5)	86,295

- (1) Includes 2008 annual cash retainer and fees for serving on our Board and committees of our Board.
- (2) Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes during 2008, in accordance with FAS 123(R), and thus includes amounts from stock options and restricted stock awards granted in and prior to 2008. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in footnote 3 to our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008. The aggregate number of option awards outstanding for each director as of December 31, 2008 is as follows: Philip R. Chapman, 86,629; Peter F. Gearen, 108,800; Michael J. Odrich, 108,840; David J. Simpson, 83,000; Gregory P. Rainey, 40,000; Julianne M. Bowler, 40,000; Udo Henseler, 10,000; Adrian J. R. Smith, 10,000; and Roy D. Crowninshield, 10,000. None of our non-employee directors held restricted stock awards as of December 31, 2008.
- (3) Such cash compensation was paid to Lehman Brothers, where Mr. Odrich is an employee.
- (4) Includes 10,000 options granted in 2008 to purchase shares of our common stock with a per share grant date fair value of \$4.20 and one year vesting.
- (5) Includes 10,000 options granted in 2008 to purchase shares of our common stock with a per share grant date fair value of \$4.62 and one year vesting.

## COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management. Based upon such review, the related discussions and such other matters deemed relevant and appropriate by the Compensation Committee, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement.

Philip R. Chapman (Chairman)

David J. Simpson

Roy D. Crowninshield

Adrian J. R. Smith

32

## SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth information as of March 13, 2009 regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock by: (1) each person known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding common stock; (2) each of our directors and nominees for director; (3) each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table; and (4) all of our directors and executive officers as a group. Except as otherwise specified, the named beneficial owner has the sole voting and investment power over the shares listed. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of the beneficial owner is: c/o RTI Biologics, Inc., 11621 Research Circle, Alachua, Florida 32615.

		Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership (1)	
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	of Beneficia Number	Ownership (1) Percent	
Brian K. Hutchison (2)	1,319,200	2.3	
Guy L. Mayer (3)	559,912	1.0	
Thomas F. Rose (4)	323,701	*	
Roger W. Rose (5)	251,002	*	
Caroline A. Hartill (6)	186,001	*	
David J. Simpson (7)	93,157	*	
Philip R. Chapman (8)	127,688	*	
Peter F. Gearen (9)	98,800	*	
Gregory P. Rainey (10)	35,000	*	
Julianne M. Bowler (11)	24,492	*	
Michael J. Odrich (12)	14,440	*	
Roy D. Crowninshield (13)	93,640	*	
Udo Henseler (14)	40,140	*	
Adrian J.R. Smith (15)	39,890	*	
Fidelity Management & Research Co. (16)	6,273,152	11.6	
82 Devonshire Street			
Boston, Massachusetts 02109			
Gagnon Securities LLC (17)	3,739,580	6.9	
1370 Avenue of the Americas Suite 2002			
New York, NY 10019-4602			
All executive officers and directors, including those named as a group			
(14 persons) (18)	3,207,063	5.6	

<sup>\*</sup> Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1%.

- (1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, which generally attribute beneficial ownership of securities to persons who possess sole or shared voting power and/or investment power with respect to those securities. Shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options, to the extent such options are exercisable or convertible within 60 days after March 13, 2009 are treated as outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage of the person holding such securities but are not treated as outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage of any other person.
- (2) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 1,149,754 shares of our common stock.

# Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

- (3) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 549,000 shares of our common stock.
- (4) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 300,001 shares of our common stock.
- (5) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 216,002 shares of our common stock.
- (6) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 180,001 shares of our common stock.

33

- (7) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 73,000 shares of our common stock. Mr. Simpson also holds 20,000 shares of common stock and his wife owns 157 shares of common stock as part of an individual retirement account. Mr. Simpson disclaims beneficial ownership of all shares other than those held in his name.
- (8) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 84,325 shares of our common stock.
- (9) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 84,400 shares of our common stock.
- (10) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 30,000 shares of our common stock.
- (11) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 20,000 shares of our common stock.
- (12) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 14,440 shares of our common stock.
- (13) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 61,240 shares of our common stock.
- (14) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 24,640 shares of our common stock.
- (15) Includes currently-exercisable options to purchase 39,890 shares of our common stock.
- (16) Information is derived from the Schedule 13G, filed December 31, 2008 by Fidelity Management & Research Co. with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Such filing states that Fidelity Management & Research Co. is deemed to have beneficial ownership as of February 27, 2008 of 6,273,153 shares.
- (17) Information is derived from the Schedule 13G, filed March 17, 2008 by Gagnon Securities LLC with the Securities and Exchange Commission. N. Gagnon beneficially owns 3,739,580 shares of our common stock, which amount includes (i) 493,172 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Gagnon over which he has sole voting power and sole dispositive power; (ii) 72,687 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Gagnon over which he has sole voting power and shared dispositive power; (iii) 312,552 shares beneficially owned by L. Gagnon, Mr. Gagnon s wife, over which Mr. Gagnon has shared voting power and shared dispositive power; (iv) 17,370 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Gagnon and Mrs. Gagnon as Joint Tenants with Rights of Survivorship, over which he has shared voting power and shared dispositive power; (v) 70,217 shares held by the Lois E. and Neil E. Gagnon Foundation, of which Mr. Gagnon is a trustee and over which he has shared voting power and shared dispositive power; (vi) 108,185 shares held by the Gagnon Family Limited Partnership, of which Mr. Gagnon is a partner and over which he has shared voting power and shared dispositive power; (vii) 90,825 shares held by the Gagnon Grandchildren Trust, over which Mr. Gagnon has shared dispositive power but no voting power; (viii) 1,017,016 shares held by four hedge funds (collectively, the Funds ), of which Mr. Gagnon is either a member of the general partner or the managing member and over which he has sole dispositive power and sole voting power; (ix) 3,207 shares held by the Gagnon Securities LLC Profit Sharing Plan and Trust (the Plan ) of which Mr. Gagnon is a Trustee and over which Mr. Gagnon has sole dispositive power and sole voting power; (x) 8,776 shares held by the Plan over which Mr. Gagnon has shared dispositive power and sole voting power; and (xi) 1,545,572 shares held for certain customers of Gagnon Securities LLC, of which Mr. Gagnon is the managing member and the principal owner and over which he has shared dispositive power but no voting power.

(18) Includes options to purchase 2,896,693 shares of our common stock.

Edgar Filing: RTI Biologics, Inc. - Form DEF 14A

34

# **Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans**

We have two stock-based compensation plans under which employees, consultants and outside directors receive stock options and other equity-based awards. At December 31, 2008, awards relating to 6,140,494 shares were outstanding, and 1,600,804 shares remained available for the grant of awards under our plans. For the year ended December 31, 2008, employees and outside directors of the Company were granted 390,000 stock options under the plans. Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to 100% of the market value of a share of common stock on the date of the grant, generally have ten-year contractual terms, and vest no later than five years from the date of grant.

	Equity Compensation Plan Information					
Plan Category	Number of Securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights (a)	price of outs warr	verage exercise tanding options, ants and ights (b)	Number of securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in column (a)) (c)		
Equity compensation plans						
approved by security holders	6,140,494	\$	6.55	1,600,804		
Equity compensation plans not						
approved by security holders						
Total	6,140,494	\$	6.55	1,600,804		

#### AUDIT MATTERS

## **Independent Public Accountant**

The Audit Committee has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, to audit our accounts for the year 2009. We expect a representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP to be present at the Annual Meeting with the opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires to do so and to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

### **Audit Fees**

The aggregate fees billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their respective affiliates (collectively, Deloitte) for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, for the Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 audit of our internal control structure, and for the reviews of the financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for those years were \$754,000 and \$626,000, respectively.

#### **Audit Related Fees**

Deloitte rendered no professional services for audit-related services for the years ended December 31, 2008 or 2007.

#### Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Deloitte for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 totaled \$93,000 and \$21,000, respectively.

#### All Other Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Deloitte for services rendered to us, other than the services described above under Audit Fees , Audit Related Fees , and Tax Fees , for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were \$10,000 and \$254,000, respectively. All other fees principally relate to merger-related services and benefit plan consulting services. The Audit Committee has determined that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with maintaining the principal accountant s independence.

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm prior to the engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm with respect to such services. The Audit Committee shall pre-approve any additional audit services and permissible non-audit services. All Audit Fees , Audit-Related Fees , Tax Fees and All Other Fees set forth above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee in accordance with its pre-approval policy.

36

#### AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee presently consists of Messrs. Simpson, Henseler, Gearen and Ms. Bowler. All of the Audit Committee members satisfy the definition of independent director as established in the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Board of Directors adopted an amended written charter for the Audit Committee on December 8, 2008, which is available on our website at <a href="https://www.rtix.com/AuditCharter.aspx">www.rtix.com/AuditCharter.aspx</a>. Under the Charter of the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in overseeing matters relating to the accounting and reporting practices of the Company, the adequacy of the Company s disclosure controls and internal controls, the quality and integrity of the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company, and pre-approval of the current year audit and non-audit fees with the Company s independent auditor.

Management is responsible for our financial reporting process, including its system of internal controls, and for the preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing those financial statements. The responsibility of the Audit Committee is to monitor and review these processes.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Audit Committee held meetings and otherwise met and communicated with management and with Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company s Independent Auditor for 2008. Deloitte & Touche discussed with the Audit Committee various matters under applicable auditing standards, including information regarding the scope and results of the audit and other matters required to be discussed by PCAOB AU 380, Communication with Audit Committees, And SEC Rule 2-07 of Regulation S-X. The Audit Committee also discussed with Deloitte & Touche its independence from the Company and received the written disclosures and the letter from Deloitte & Touche concerning independence as required by the PCAOB Ethics and Independence Rule 3526, Communication with Audit Committees Concerning Independence . The Audit Committee also reviewed the provision of services by Deloitte & Touche not related to the audit of the Company s financial statements and not related to the review provision of the Company s interim financial statements as it pertains to the independence of Deloitte & Touche. Deloitte & Touche also periodically reported the progress of its audit of the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with management the Company s financial results prior to the release of earnings. In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with management and Deloitte & Touche the interim financial information included in the March 31, 2008, June 30, 2008 and September 30, 2008 Form 10-Qs prior to their being filed with the SEC. The Audit Committee also reviewed and discussed the Company s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008 with management and Deloitte & Touche. Deloitte & Touche informed the Audit Committee that the Company s audited financial statements are presented fairly in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Audit Committee also monitored and reviewed the Company s procedures and policies relating to the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related regulations.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, and such other matters deemed relevant and appropriate by the Audit Committee, The Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors, and the Board has approved, that the financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

This report of the Audit Committee shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this proxy statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under these acts.

Audit Committee,

David J. Simpson (Chairman)

Udo Henseler

Peter F. Gearen

Julianne M. Bowler

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

None.

38

### **OTHER MATTERS**

Our Board of Directors knows of no other business to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting. However, if any other business properly comes before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed proxy to vote on such matters in accordance with their best judgment.

The prompt return of your proxy is appreciated and will be helpful in obtaining the necessary vote. Therefore, whether or not you expect to attend the Annual Meeting, please sign the proxy and return it in the enclosed envelope.

39

### ANNUAL REPORT

A copy (without exhibits) of our Annual Report, including our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, has been provided with this Proxy Statement; however, that report is not part of the proxy soliciting information.

Additional copies of the Form 10-K are available, free of charge, upon request directed to:

**Investor Relations** 

RTI Biologics, Inc.

11621 Research Circle

Alachua, Florida 32615

Telephone: (386) 418-8888

Our 2008 Form 10-K is also available through our website at www.rtix.com/SEC.aspx. Our Form 10-K is not proxy soliciting material.

40

### INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

To the extent that this Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference into any other filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, the sections of this Proxy Statement entitled Compensation Committee Report and Audit Committee Report (to the extent permitted by the rules of the SEC) will not be deemed incorporated unless specifically provided otherwise in such filing. Information contained on or connected to our website is not incorporated by reference into this Proxy Statement and should not be considered part of this Proxy Statement or any other filing that we make with the SEC.

# STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

All stockholder proposals intended to be presented at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2010 must be received by us no later than December 1, 2009 for inclusion in the Board of Directors proxy statement and form of proxy relating to the Annual Meeting.

42

## RTI BIOLOGICS, INC.

# THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#### FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

# TO BE HELD ON APRIL 21, 2009

The undersigned, a stockholder of RTI Biologics, Inc. (the Corporation), hereby constitutes and appoints Brian K. Hutchison and Thomas F. Rose and each of them, the true and lawful proxies and attorneys-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power of substitution in each of them, to vote all shares of Common Stock of the Corporation which the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Corporation to be held on Tuesday, April 21, 2009, and at any and all adjournments or postponements thereof, as follows:

	(1)	ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
١	1.	LLLCTION OF DIRECTORS

(INSTRUCTION: To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee, strike a line through the nominee s name in the list below.)

" FOR the nominees listed below (except as marked to the contrary below)

 WITHHOLDING AUTHORITY to vote for the nominees listed below

Philip R. Chapman Gregory P. Rainey

(2) In their discretion, upon such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any and all adjournments or postponements thereof.

Shares represented by this Proxy will be voted in accordance with the instructions indicated in item 1. IF NO INSTRUCTION IS INDICATED, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR THE LISTED NOMINEES FOR DIRECTORS.

Any and all proxies heretofore given by the undersigned are hereby revoked.

Dated:

Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear hereon. If shares are held by two or more persons each should sign. Trustees, executors and other fiduciaries should indicate their capacity. Shares held by corporations, partnerships, associations, etc. should be signed by an authorized person, giving full title or authority.

 $cute{\mathbf{e}}$  Detach above card, sign, date and mail in postage paid envelope provided.  $\ensuremath{\mathbf{e}}$ 

## RTI BIOLOGICS, INC.

Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear hereon. If shares are held by two or more persons each should sign. Trustees, executors and other fiduciaries should indicate their capacity. Shares held by corporations, partnerships, associations, etc. should be signed by an authorized person, giving full title or authority.

## PLEASE ACT PROMPTLY

## SIGN, DATE & MAIL YOUR PROXY CARD TODAY

IF YOUR ADDRESS HAS CHANGED, PLEASE CORRECT THE ADDRESS IN THE SPACE PROVIDED BELOW AND RETURN THIS PORTION WITH THE PROXY IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING:

This Notice and Proxy Statement, our proxy card and our Annual Report also are available at www.sendd.com/EZProxy/?project\_id=151.

5511